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From 1963 onwards the entire site encompassing both 

Vasey House and Jean Rouse Villa has housed War 

Widow’s and facilitated SA War Widows Guild activities.  

This legacy, and the two historic buildings on site, are 

now at serious risk of demolition as  looks to 

develop the site into high rise luxury apartments to 

maximise profits - after being gifted the site by the SA 

War Widows Guild in 2005 on the understanding it 

would be enhanced for future War Widow generations. 

Historical sources used to support your 

nomination (please attach copies of pages from 

publications or newspaper articles as 

appropriate): 

Refer below 
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Various heritage details as sourced from the following; 

1. Burnside Historical Society 

2. Polly Dundon (author - ' Secrets of Rose Park Toorak Gardens Dulwich and Districts Beyond”) 

- Detailed background on Jean Rouse attached to this application via (appendix) 

3. Mrs Jan Milham - Australian War Widows (SA) Inc. 

4. Several other newspaper articles via Trove. 

Jean Rouse Villa to the South of Vasey House – Named in honour of Jean Rouse as the first paid up 

member of the SA War Widows Guild for the sum of 1 shilling in 1946.  Confirmed via the current War 

Widow’s Guild President Mrs Jan Milham Dec 2025 and as below. 

 

Jean’s HUSBAND - Maxwell Hainsworth ROUSE was born on 2nd January 1913 in Port Pirie, South Australia 

His parents were Hainsworth Frederick John ROUSE & Sarah Elizabeth FIELD who married in South Australia 

in 1909.  He married “Jeanie” Scriven BLYTH (Jean ROUSE) on 17th Oct 1940. 

Mr Rouse sadly died in 1945 during his time as a POW in Borneo (WWII). 
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Jean (Jeanie) Rouse, nee Blyth at the Unitarian Shady Grove Cemetery in the Adelaide Hills 1970’s (source – 

War Widow’s Guild (SA)  Dec 2025). 

 

Below - The National War Widows Guild Founder (Mrs Jessie Vasey OBE CBE (1897-1966) with Vasey 

House named in her honour. (source – War Widow’s Guild (SA)  Dec 2025) 

         https://warwidows.org.au/about-us/founder/ 
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Details of the 1898 Rose Park subdivision Land Auction (source Burnside Council Records). Indicating 

Thomas (Thom) Rhodes as the original purchaser of land on which Jean Rouse Villa now sits.  Also noting 

Edward Spicer’s purchases of Lots 3, 4 & 5 to the North where his grand home was later constructed. 

 

Edward Spicer’s residence at 137 Fullarton Road (Lots 3,4 & 5) – unfortunately since demolished 
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Observer (Adelaide, SA : 1905 - 1931) Sat 15 Jan 1916  Page 36 MR. THOMAS RHODES. 

 

 

https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/214060063?searchTerm=thomas%20rhodes 
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 It has rare, uncommon or 

endangered qualities that are of 

cultural significance. 

The two historic villas’ on the site together with the stone wall, 

retain original architectural features such as ironwork fencing, 

sandstone walls, brick quoins, and decorative iron lattice work, 

which are increasingly rare in modern developments along Fullarton 

Road.  

 

 It may yield information that will 

contribute to an understanding 

of the State's history, including 

its natural history. 

      

 It is an outstanding 

representative of a particular 

class of places of cultural 

significance. 

The sites association with the War Widows Guild SA Inc. gives it 

strong cultural significance for a group that contributed greatly to 

South Australian society post WWII. 

 

 It demonstrates a high degree of 

creative, aesthetic or technical 

accomplishment or is an 

outstanding representative of 

particular construction 

techniques or design 

characteristics. 

      

 It has strong cultural or spiritual 

associations for the community 

or a group within it. 

The site and its two historic sandstone villas’, share a long-standing 

relationship / association with the War Widow’s Guild (SA) after they 

raised the funds required (6,000 pounds over a 15 year period) to 

purchase the current site.  With the guild representing a crucially 

important group in South Australian society in the aftermath of 

WWII.  

 It has a special association with 

the life or work of a person or 

organisation or an event of 

historical importance. 

Jean Rouse Villa as pictured below (not currently protected) 

was named in honour of the SA War Widow Guild’s first paid up 

member (Jean Rouse) - paying 1 Shilling in 1946 for that privilege 

after her husband Cpl Maxwell Hainsworth ROUSE died while a 

POW in Borneo in WWII. 

 

























 

 

South Australian   

   HERITAGE COUNCIL 

Page 23 

SA Heritage Register 
Place Nomination form 

 



1 
 

JEAN ROUSE VILLA – 141 FULLARTON ROAD, ROSE PARK 

THE STORY OF JEAN (JEANIE) ROUSE (nee BLYTH) 

When on a daily walk, I have often admired an architecturally attractive old building at 141 

Fullarton Road that is part of the Australian War Widows Guild in South Australia.  

Along Fullarton Road, the past residents who have lived in houses along this road, and who 

have contributed to the foundation of the early history of Adelaide, spring to mind. Rev George 

Davidson, Robert Charlick, Richard Verco, John Vincent, Hermann Homburg, Heinrich Krawindel 

and Edward Spicer. Some of their homes are still standing, while others like Edward Spicer’s 

have sadly been demolished – considered of no significant heritage value! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

War Widows Guild SA Inc 

On the corner of Hewitt Avenue and Fullarton Road is the property, Vasey House, which was 

purchased by the War Widows Guild.  

The War Widows Guild was founded by Mrs Jessie Vasey in 1945 to give much needed 

support for women married to soldiers who lost their lives while serving overseas during WWII, 

giving them the opportunity of each other’s company, and to supplement their unfair pensions 

through activities such as weaving and handcrafts. 

Jeanie Rouse was a Foundation Member of the Guild in South Australia. 

The former home of Edward Spicer, 137 
Fullarton Road – since demolished 
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She was born Jean Scriven Blyth on the 7th 

of October 1910, to Daisy Scriven (nee Wight) 

and David Blyth at Wilkinson Road, Parkside 

South.  

During those times midwives would have 

attended many home births, so this may 

possibly have been the situation when Daisy 

Blyth was giving birth to her children. 

We know that Jeanie Blyth married a very 

adventurous groom called Maxwell (Mack) 

Hainsworth Rouse, originally from Port Pirie.  

His father ( Hainsworth Frederick Rouse) had put a call out, via the newspaper, in 1928 when 

Mack was 15 years of age, because  his son had gone missing from their home in Brougham Place 

at Alberton. 

The description given of Maxwell included that he was a native of South Australia, (which 

would rightfully be challenged these days!!!) and that he had an ‘ordinary’ nose among other 

items given for a description of the young man. It was apparently not unusual for young men to 

venture from their homes early in life – history tells us that George Hubert Wilkins and Sidney 

Kidman ventured oƯ from their homes very early in life to start their amazing adventures. 

He must have eventually returned, because Jeannie and Mack, he was called,  were married 

in the OƯice of the Principal Registrar, Adelaide on the 17th of October 1940, approximately 13 

months after WWII had started. 

 Jean’s new husband had already enlisted in the Australian Army in July of 1940.  Although 

this article is Jean Rouse’s story, it is important to know something of her life being married to a 

soldier, who never returned.  

Corporal Maxwell Rouse became a Prisoner of War within the Singapore Changi camp 

before being transferred to the Sandakan camp in north Borneo, where he died as a POW of the 

House in Wilkinson Road, Parkside where 
Jeanie Rouse was born in 1910 

Photo by Author 2026 
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Japanese in March of 1945. He has no known grave, but his name is commemorated in a 

Memorial in Malaysia. 

We can now go into snippets of Jeanie’s life after she married.  

She and Mack are said to have had ‘children’ – indicating more than one child.  

A record of a boy called William Charlesworth has been found – born in 1942. But no records 

of further children have been sighted at this time.  If any relatives do come forward with 

information about other children, it would be appreciated.  

At the time of her husband’s 

death, Jean was  living with her 

parents on Ettrick Street, 

Medindie. This attractive 

bungalow, in need of some TLC, 

has recently been demolished.  

 

 

 

Jeanie apparently was not sitting at home fretting about the future (well, we don’t really 

know that!!) but she was, in fact,  actively involved with helping others.  

Newspaper items in 1941 tell of Jeanie’s involvement in the TOC H League of women 

helpers, and the Mothers’ and Babies’ Health Association.  

Home of Jeanie’s parents on Ettrick Street, Medindie 
Photo from Realestate.com 
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Jeanie is buried at the Balhannah Shady Grove Unitarian Cemetery in the Adelaide Hills.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is a beautiful resting place for many people including Dr John Dowie AM, the famous 

sculptor and artist, who was a resident of Dulwich, which, like Rose Park, is  a suburb of the City 

of Burnside. 

The Fullarton Road Villas of the War Widows Guild – “Jean Rouse Villa” (141 Fullarton 

Road) and “Vasey House” (2 Hewitt Avenue) 

Between 1965 and 1966, what was Victoria Avenue had its name changed to Fullarton Road. 

Before that, it had had several diƯerent names, initially with Kent Road, beginning where the 

Maid and Magpie Hotel now stands; Brownhill Creek Road; Government Road; etc. 

These two houses stand side by side, one on Hewitt Avenue and the other on Fullarton Road. 

Despite very important people who may have built and lived in these homes, their 

importance seems secondary to the story of the brave women of the War Widows Guild  who 

have had to fight diƯicult battles for justice and fairness in receiving pensions and support – and 

who, it appears still have to keep fighting to avoid unceremonious eviction.  

In 1965, number 7 Victoria Avenue, as it was the name and  number used at the time (now 

known as 141, Fullarton Road), had Mrs E Pierson and Mrs B McLeod as residing there – most 

likely War Widows.  The following year, 1966, the records show it as  Number 141 and  as simply  

the War Widows Guild in 1967. 

Balhannah Shady Grove School House, Cemetery and Unitarian Chapel 
Photo by Author 2023 






